
Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilman James L. Furstenberg 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey F. Silka 
City Solicitor Michael Scott Cohen 

City Clerk Allison K. Layton 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

M&CC Regular Session 

City Hall Council Chambers, 57 N. Liberty St., Cumberland 

 

DATE:    September 19, 2023 

 

OPEN SESSION – 6:15 PM 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Director's Reports 

(A) Administrative Services 

1. Administrative Services Monthly Report for August 2023 

(B) Public Works 

1. Maintenance Division Monthly Report for August 2023 

(C) Fire 

1. Fire Department Monthly Report for August 2023 

(D) Police 

1. Police Department Monthly Report for August 2023 

(E) Utilities - Flood, Water, Sewer 

1. Utilities Division Flood/Water/Sewer Monthly Reports for July and August 2023 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the Closed, Work and Regular Session Minutes of September 5, 2023 

Public Hearings 

1. Public Hearing to receive comment on the Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report 

(CAPER) for the 2022 FY, Presented by by Lee Borror, Senior Community Development 

Specialist 



Public Comments – FOR AGENDA ITEMS ONLY 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

Unfinished Business 

(A) Charter Amendment Resolutions 

1. Charter Amendment Resolution No. 152 (2nd and 3rd readings) - to repeal and re-enact 

with Amendments Section 13 of the Charter of the City of Cumberland pertaining to the 

compensation of the Mayor and City Council 

New Business 

(A) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

1. Order 27,319 - authorizing Special Taxing District residential exemptions for 107 S. 

Centre Street ($696.26) and 33 N. Centre Street ($600.72) 

2. Order 27,320 - rescinding Order 27,308 dated September 5, 2023 and authorizing the 

abatement of 2023-20234 taxes in the amount of $12,087.84 for City-owned property at 

600 Bishop Walsh Road (Tax ID #06-050301) 

3. Order 27,321 - accepting certain bids received for the "2023 GovDeals Sale 3 of Surplus 

Vehicles and Equipment" and rejecting all other bids 

4. Order 27,322 - declaring office furniture (six chairs) as surplus property and authorizing 

it to be sold, donated or disposed of and accepting the request from the Town of 

Ridgeley, WV to donate the chairs 

5. Order 27,323- declaring vehicles and equipment to be surplus and authorizing them for 

sale, trade in or scrap 

6. Order 27,324 - authorizing the emergency lighting, flood lighting, DOT lighting and 

lighting housing of a surplus 2014 Ford F450 Ambulance to be donated to Barton Hose 

Company 

7. Order 27,325 – authorizing an extension through October 31, 2023 on the forgivable loan 

originally approved by Order No. 27,069 dated August 16, 2022, due to construction 

delays 

8. Order 27,326 - authorizing the sole source purchase one (1) Pierce Saber Fire Engine, 

Custom Stock Pumper Job #41230 from Atlantic Emergency Solutions in the amount not 

to exceed $898,000, including equipment and mounting of equipment 

9. Order 27,327 - accepting the bid from Harbel, Inc., for the repairs to Bridge A-C-01 

McMullen Bridge (City Project 18-16-BR) in the not-to-exceed amount of $500,577.92 

Public Comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

Adjournment  



File Attachments for Item:

. Administrative Services Monthly Report for August 2023





















File Attachments for Item:

. Maintenance Division Monthly Report for August 2023

















File Attachments for Item:

. Fire Department Monthly Report for August 2023













File Attachments for Item:

. Police Department Monthly Report for August 2023











File Attachments for Item:

. Utilities Division Flood/Water/Sewer Monthly Reports for July and August 2023



















File Attachments for Item:

1. Approval of the Closed, Work and Regular Session Minutes of September 5, 2023



 

 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
Closed Session Minutes 
City Hall, 57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, MD 21502             
2nd Floor Conference Room 
Tuesday, September 5, 2023; 4:00 p.m. 
  

The Mayor and City Council convened in public session followed immediately by a motion to 
close the meeting pursuant to Section 3-305 (b)(7) of the General Provisions Article of the 
Annotated Code of Maryland to receive legal advice for ongoing negotiations in regards to the 
City’s Consent Decree for Combined Sewer Overflows. 

 
MOTION: Motion to enter into Closed Session was made by Council Member , seconded by 
Council Member , and was passed on a vote of        . 
 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, 
Jimmy Furstenberg, and Laurie Marchini 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Jeffrey F. Silka, City Administrator; Allison Layton, City Clerk; Michael S. 
Cohen, City Solicitor; Ken Tressler, Director of Administrative Services; Robert Smith, Director 
of Engineering & Utilities 
 



Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilman James L. Furstenberg 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey F. Silka 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Allison K. Layton 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 

WORK SESSION 

City Hall 2nd Floor Conference Room 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 
 

Tuesday, September 5, 2023, 4:45 p.m. 

PRESENT:  Mayor Raymond M. Morriss; Council Members: Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, Jimmy 

Furstenberg, Laurie Marchini.   

ALSO PRESENT: Jeffrey F. Silka, City Administrator; Allison Layton, City Clerk; Michael Cohen, City  

Solicitor; Shannon Adams, Fire Chief; Steve Grogg, Deputy Fire Chief 

Media: Teresa McMinn, Cumberland Times-News 

 Kathy Cornwell, WCBC Radio 

  
 

I. FIRE DEPARTMENT UPDATE 

Chief Adams provided an update, along with a handout, as to where the department stands as of 

September 1, 2023.   

The Chief advised that they are currently down three people, and after testing obtained three 

people that were considered hirable.  He stated that seven people were in training for paramedics, 

and said the department is still at 52 personnel, 48 operational, and 4 administrative.  Chief 

Adams advised that an organizational chart was included with the handout. 

The Chief discussed call volume, which he said is up 1,055 calls – Fire and EMS together.  He 

advised that this is the biggest jump for a 2-year span.  He said fire calls are down, EMS calls are 

rising.  He stated that they are trying to decrease where new apparatus has to go out, and talked 

about the Lucas Devise, which he stated does CPR and almost takes the place of two people on a 

call.  He said it was purchased with a grant, and has been very helpful. 

Chief Adams explained that the uptick of calls are a combination of things, and mentioned that 

overdoses average about two a day.  He stated that on average, the CFD is the healthcare for the 

area - the ER is overloaded, and counterparts are overloaded as well. 



Chief Adams discussed reimbursement and how they have streamlined to paperless billing, which 

he said now takes just an hour a day – down from two hours a day.  He talked about delays with 

getting patients into hospital rooms, and said the delay is at the hospital usually.   

The Fire Chief discussed recruit testing and instructor training, saying that 18 people applied, 10 

showed up, and 5 passed, which he said was similar to their counterparts.  He stated that their 

training met or exceeded the County officer standard – the highest being Fire Officer 4.  He added 

that there are 5 people currently in the instructor process, with 2 planning to be certified in the 

next month, and 2 more waiting to get into classes.  He said the training academy is up to about 

12 people.  The Chief also stated that the recent promotions list is included with the handout. 

Chief Adams discussed special operations training, advising that they now have 16 certified in 

confined spaces response and 3 going to MSP ground school helicopter training.  He added that 

10 are in the process of rope rescue technician training and 10 in Haz-mat technician training.  He 

stated that there is a push to get more colleges involved, advising that Garrett is the only local 

college doing the training right now. 

Chief Adams stated that they have changed some response procedures a bit – trying to use the 

new rescue truck instead of the ladder truck when the ladder is not needed, which saves wear and 

tear on the ladder truck.  He said they have gone back to a smaller firefighter engine, and noted 

that it will mean cost savings in the future. 

The Fire Chief advised their new vehicle squad is being equipped and ready to go, but said there 

was a mishap with a new truck last week.  He talked about the new engine being due here in the 

next two weeks, ready to go, and said the two reserve engines are taking a beating.  He also 

advised that new ambulances will be here after the first of the year.  He mentioned that software 

has caused some issues, and said they are looking at new software. 

Deputy Chief Grogg advised that he had met with Mr. Silka about status of the fleet and what 

may be needed in the future, and provided a handout.  The Deputy Chief stated that costs have 

gone up a lot, and said the 1994 engine is the best of all three due to it being built before all the 

electronics were mandated.  He also stated that body-wise, the 1994 is in better shape. 

Deputy Chief Grogg advised that they have developed a preventive maintenance plan to head off 

issues, and said the ambulances have been riddled with issues; however, the heavier ambulances 

have a truck chassis so are holding up much better.  He said the new heavy rescue truck they are 

getting will take some burden off the engines.  He provided a handout of the current fleet showing 

mileage and year made, and projections for the future.  He also mentioned that morale in the CPD 

is the highest he’s ever seen it in his 28 years with the Department, and said they are all very 

appreciative of everything M&CC has done for them. 

Mr. Silka discussed the new equipment the CFD is requesting.  He stated that 24–36-month lead 

time is good, and every month it gets longer.  He said they are asking for a slot in the assembly 

line to pay two years in the future, and asked for consensus to get in line for the Spring of 2025. 

Mayor Morriss stated that this gives the advantage of being able to plan finances out two years in 

advance for the FY26 budget. 

Chief Adams stated that he knew they had issues when the Deputy Chief brought him the 

research, and there was discussion about how backed up assembly is and that used fleet is being 



bought up by larger departments.  He stated amidst all the issues, Deputy Chief Grogg has been 

very helpful. 

 Consensus to get on the assembly line list 

The Chief advised that Station 2 is past its life expectancy and said apparatuses are a big problem.  

He discussed it possibly becoming a training place, but said it would need a training pad area, and 

two bays would be beneficial.  He also mentioned that there are only two people at Station 2 right 

now, and said they average 2-3 ambulance calls per shift. 

II. CODE SWEEPS DISCUSSION 

Mr. Silka advised that they have started policing neighborhoods and have devised a Code Sweep, 

with N. Centre and Mechanic done last week.  He stated that all code officers go out at one time, 

walking the streets looking for violations.  They are provided with door hangers – one side is a 

reminder, the other side is a thank-you, and an entry into a gift certificate drawing.  Mayor 

Morriss stated that most of the calls he’s received have been positive, and said this Code Sweep is 

about modifying behavior and making people care about their property. 

III. AGENDA REVIEW SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 

Mr. Silka reviewed the Public Meeting Agenda, and discussed Order 27,310, which is regarding 

modifying the Carver Center money, re-allocating $3K of it to address windows in the building 

for security. 

Council Member Marchini asked for a correction of the minutes from the August 15th Work 

Session, saying the Mixx shop is on Centre Street, not Baltimore Street as stated in the minutes. 

IV. MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL UPDATES 

 

Mayor Morriss mentioned the Whiskey Rebellion event and Friday after Five, along with  

Heritage Days this coming Saturday and Sunday.  He also spoke about the ribbon cuttings in the 

last couple of weeks – Elijah Thane Art Gallery; AJ’s Cookie Jar; and Basecamp Coffee’s 2nd 

location.  He stated that Archway Station has a ribbon cutting coming up next week. 

 

Council Member Furstenberg mentioned that Dan Diehl from Allegany High School broke 

another swimming record. 

 

Council Member Cioni mentioned the LBC meeting on Thursday at St. Paul’s, and said the 

Friends of the Park event held recently was the biggest attendance at the Constitution Park pool 

all season long.  He stated that there is a Friends of the Park meeting tomorrow night. 

 

Mayor Morriss also mentioned the Women’s Civic Club Dinner on Thursday – the kick-off for 

Heritage Days, with tickets available online.   

 

Council Member Marchini mentioned the Dragon Boat Races on September 23rd – 11 people 

have signed up, and they need 10 more.  She stated that she has sent around an email update 

about Baltimore Street, which is all good news. 

 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT 



 

With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 5:55 p.m.    

 

  Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

Allison K. Layton 

 City Clerk 

 

 

 Minutes approved on: ___________________ 

 



Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilman James L. Furstenberg 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey F. Silka 
City Solicitor Michael Scott Cohen 

City Clerk Allison K. Layton 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

MINUTES  

M&CC Regular Meeting 

57 N. Liberty Street 

 

DATE:    September 05, 2023 

 

 

I. OPEN SESSION – 6:15 p.m. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Roll Call 

 PRESENT:   

 Council Member Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 

 Council Member Eugene T. Frazier 

 Council Member James L. Furstenberg 

 Council Member Laurie P. Marchini 

 President Raymond M. Morriss 

 

Also Present:  Jeffrey F. Silka, City Administrator; Allison K. Layton, City Clerk; Michael S. 

Cohen, City Solicitor 
 

IV. Statement of Closed Meeting 

Mayor Morriss announced that a closed meeting had been held on September 5, 2023 at 

4:00 p.m. and read into the record a summary of that session which is attached hereto and 

made a part of these minutes as required under Section 3-306 (c)(2) of the General 

Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. 

V. Presentations 

1. Presentation of City Star Awards 

 Robert Thomas Bruce (not present); Gloria Schintzius (not present); Don Martin (present); 

Danny Benson (present); Stephanie Yonce (present); AHEC West (present); Charlotte and 

Paul Lapp (present) 



 Chief Ternent spoke about Robert Thomas Bruce, saying that Mr. Bruce is commonly seen 

around City Hall, the Public Safety Building and the downtown area with his dust pan and 

broom, cleaning up and picking up cigarette butts, trash, etc.  The Chief said he’s thanked 

Mr. Bruce many times, and eventually he was nominated for this award.  He added that Ed 

Mullaney had also previously given Mr. Bruce a Good Citizen award. 

 Mayor Morriss spoke about Gloria Schintzius, owner of Little Caesar’s Pizza, Springdale 

Street, who was nominated by Cheryl Nash for her work in supporting the City of 

Cumberland and the community, and said she is known to go above and beyond for her 

customers and employees.  He said she has donated dozens of pizzas to the schools and 

football teams. 

 Mayor Morriss spoke about Don Martin, owner of Don’s Barbershop on Virginia Avenue, 

saying he himself has been known to stop by there and get advice about the neighborhood.  

He said Mr. Martin’s shop is where people go to discuss what’s happening, and said there’s 

a real sense of community there.  The Mayor thanked him for all the good work he does for 

the City. 

 Mayor Morriss spoke about Danny Benson, and said he’s seen him at many of the charity 

events around town, of which he is very active.  The Mayor thanked him for all the work he 

does for the charities. 

 Stephanie Yonce was nominated by Kathy McKinney.  Ms. McKinney stated that she met 

Ms. Yonce when she herself was the historical coordinator for the City, and said Ms. Yonce 

has been her point person for George Washington’s Headquarters cabin.  She said Ms. 

Yonce has represented the D.A.R. and has tirelessly dedicated her time to the cabin’s welfare 

and the tours since the cabin was placed in Riverside Park. 

 Mayor Morriss spoke about AHEC West, and about all the services they provide including 

taking care of youths who are sometimes overlooked in the community.  Chief Ternent 

stated that the CPD and AHEC West partner together frequently. 

 Ed Mullaney spoke about Paul and Charlotte Lapp and all the work they put in with Let’s 

Beautify Cumberland and the Cumberland Garden Club, and several other organizations that 

they are active in. 

VI. Director's Reports 

Motion to approve the report was made by Council Member Cioni, seconded by Council 

Member Furstenberg, and was passed on a vote of 5-0. 

(A) Engineering 

1. Engineering Division Monthly Report for August 2023 

VII. Approval of Minutes 

Motion to approve the minute was made by Council Member Marchini, seconded by 

Council Member Frazier, and was passed on a vote of 5-0. 

1. Approval of the Closed, Work, and Regular Session Minutes of August 15, 2023 

VIII. Public Hearings 



1.     A public hearing to consider Charter Amendment Resolution No. 152 to repeal and re-enact 

with amendments Section 13 of the Charter of the City pertaining to the compensation of the 

Mayor and City Council. 

  Convened: 6:35 p.m. 

 Former Council Member Joe George spoke to recommend approval of the Amendment, 

saying Mayor and Council do what they do for the love of the City, and said as a former 

Council Member he sees the number of hours the Mayor puts in, and said that Council 

Members attend meetings, workshops, grand openings, festivals, dinners and functions, and 

are visible and accessible.  He stated that they do these things to be out there with the 

citizens, and added that many expenses are out-of-pocket, and are not reimbursed.  He 

mentioned that M&CC bought their own shirts to show how much they love Cumberland, 

said this job shouldn’t be a financial burden, and thanked M&CC for their dedication. 

  Adjourned: 6:38 p.m. 

2.     A public hearing to amend the City of Cumberland Zoning Ordinance (i.e., Chapter 25 of the 

Code) for the purpose of adopting regulations pertaining to short-term rentals. 

Convened: 6:38 p.m. 

 Mr. Silka explained the Ordinance, and said the main goal is to get a handle on how many 

short-term rentals are in the AirBnB, to be sure they are registered and paying the hotel tax 

to the County.  He said the City is looking to implement inspections to ensure the safety of 

those renting, and said the latest number of short-term rentals in the City is 60.  Council 

Member Cioni voiced support for the Ordinance. 

  Adjourned: 6:39 p.m. 

IX. Public Comments – Agenda Items   

 There were no public comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

X. Unfinished Business 

(A) Ordinances 

1. Ordinance 3965 (2nd and 3rd readings) - amending the City of Cumberland Zoning 

Ordinance (Chapter 25 of the Code) for the purpose of adopting regulations pertaining to 

short-term rentals in the City of Cumberland. 

SECOND READING:  The ordinance was submitted in title only for its second reading.  

Motion to accept the reading and move to the third after comment was made by Council 

Member Frazier, seconded by Council Member Marchini, and was passed on a vote of 5-

0. 

Mayor Morriss called for questions or comments.  Being none, the ordinance moved to its 

third reading. 

THIRD READING:  The ordinance was submitted in title only for its third reading and 

was passed on a vote of 5-0. 



XI. New Business 

(A) Resolutions 

1. Resolution No. 2023-04 (1 reading) - granting the Cumberland Outdoor Club a property 

tax credit for tax years 2023-2024 pursuant to Section 9-302(f) of the Tax Property 

Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. 

 READING:  The Resolution was submitted in title only for its single reading.  On a 

motion made by Council Member Cioni, seconded by Council Member Furstenberg, the 

resolution was passed on a vote of 5-0. 

2. Resolution No. 2023-05 (1 reading) - granting the Carver Community Center a property 

tax credit for tax years 2023-2024 pursuant to Section 9-302(b)(8) of the Tax Property 

Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. 

 READING:  The Resolution was submitted in title only for its single reading.  On a 

motion made by Council Member Furstenberg, seconded by Council Member Marchini, 

the resolution was passed on a vote of 5-0. 

(B) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

Mr. Silka reviewed each item on the Consent Agenda and Mayor Morriss called 

for questions or comments.  Motion to accept each Order on the Consent Agenda 

was made by Council Member Frazier, seconded by Council Member Marchini, 

and was passed on a vote of 5-0. 

 Order 27,307 - authorizing the execution of a Donation Agreement with Brenda D. 

Morrison, Personal Representative of the Estate of Ronald L. Morrisson, for real property 

at 404 Furnace Street, Tax ID #05-019524. 

 Order 27,308 - authorizing the abatement of 2022-2023 taxes in the amount of 

$12,087.84 for City-owned property at 600 Bishop Walsh Road (Tax ID #06-050301). 

 Order 27,309 - authorizing Special Taxing District residential exemptions for 45 N. 

Centre Street ($745.10); 43-45 N. Liberty Street ($206.34); 50-52 N. Centre Street 

($300.73); 27 N. Centre Street ($334.93); and 47 Baltimore Street ($383.88). 

 Order 27,310 - amending Order No. 27,147 of December 20,2022 allowing up to $3,000 

of the allocated $25,000 to be used to secure windows at the Carver Center. 

 Order 27,311 - accepting the bid of Southern Corrosion, Inc. for the Water Tank 

Maintenance Service Contract (2023-03-WTR) in the not-to-exceed lump sum of 

$133,210.00 for FY24, with each year increasing from the base premium by the increase 

in the CPI. 

 Order 27,312 - authorizing the execution of a Cost-Share Agreement between MDOT-

SHA and the City, relative to City Project 2022-24-BR, Replacement of Bridge A-C-08. 

Fayette St. Over CSXT Railway, with the City's cost-share portion estimated at 

$106,951.70 which is 20% of the total estimated cost of $534,758.51. 

 Order 27,313 - authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a Memorandum of 

Understanding with the Family Crisis Resource Center to provide police overtime in the 



amount not to exceed $5,000 for the purpose of providing Domestic Violence Response 

Team (DVRT) Follow-Ups. 

 Order 27,314 - authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into an Updated Memorandum of 

Understanding with the City of Frostburg, Allegany County and Frostburg State 

University to employ a temporary civilian employee for the purpose of providing clerical 

services to the Allegany County Combined Criminal Investigation Unit (C3I). 

 Order 27,315 - authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into an Updated Memorandum of 

Understanding with Allegany County to employ a temporary civilian employee for the 

purpose of providing clerical services to the Allegany County Narcotics Task Force 

(ACNTF). 

 Order 27,316 - rescinding the bid of Steve Flanders for surplus equipment Ingersoll 

Garden Tractor with Plow due to non-compliance with bid procedures, and accepting the 

bid of $285 from Timothy McDermott for said equipment. 

 Order 27,317 - declaring computer equipment as surplus property and authorizing it to 

be scrapped or e-cycled. 

 Order 27,318 - authorizing the execution of an Encroachment Agreement by and 

between the Mayor and City Council, Uhl Enterprises, Inc. and Uhl Real Estate, LLC for 

the purpose of installing overhead lines for fiber to run across Davidson Street and 

Charles Street. 

XII. Public Comments 

Mike McKay, Senator, provided for the elected officials a 90-day report for Allegany County 

for all bills passed in the General Assembly, and discussed the different fundings that were 

addressed.  He advised that it represents over $160 for all the different pieces of legislation 

passed, nine this year, and talked about working on next year’s priorities. 

Mayor Morriss thanked the Senator for coming in and it was stated that this district has a good 

history of understanding with the Western Maryland Delegation.  

 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

XIII. Adjournment  

 With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:54 p.m. 

 

 Minutes approved on __________________________ 

 

 Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor _____________________________ 

 

 ATTEST: Allison K. Layton, City Clerk ___________________________ 

  



File Attachments for Item:

1. Public Hearing to receive comment on the Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report 

(CAPER) for the 2022 FY, Presented by by Lee Borror, Senior Community Development Specialist.



Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 

2020 CAPER 

July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023 
 
The City of Cumberland announces the availability for public review and comments, its Consolidated Annual 
Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the 2022 fiscal year.  The CAPER is the official report submitted to HUD 
that evaluates accomplishments against City 5-year Consolidated Plan goals and objectives.  The CAPER specifically 
describes accomplishments for projects funded using Community Development Block Grant funds during the year as 
described in the City’s 2022 Annual Action Plan.  The Public Hearing to receive comments on the CAPER will be held 
on September 19 at 6:15 p.m. during the Mayor & City Council meeting at City Hall in the accessible 3rd floor Council 
Chambers. 
 
The CAPER covers accomplishments realized from July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023.The report evaluates progress towards 
meeting goals and objectives for the categories of housing, homelessness, public services, public facilities, infrastructure, 
economic development, and planning; while addressing fair housing and the needs of special populations.  
 
The City received an annual allocation of $803,672 and $2,124 program income in Community Development Block Grant 
funds. Projects funded by prior year awards continued. A total of $1,148,230 ($935,642 regular funds and $206,118 in 
CARES Act funds) was expended on housing, public facility & infrastructure improvements, public services, and 
administration/planning activities. Over 1,042 low-moderate-income residents of Cumberland were directly affected by 
CDBG funded activities while 24,842 people benefited indirectly from “area” wide activities. Sub recipient and City 
matching funds totaled $497,372.  
 
The 2022 CAPER report will be submitted to HUD on or before Friday, September 29, 2023. The 15-day public 
comment period will run from Friday, September 1, 2023 through Monday, September 18, 2023.  Anyone wishing 
to review and provide comments related to the year-end report or to request additional meeting room accommodations 
should contact Lee Borror, Senior Community Development Specialist, City of Cumberland, Department of Community 
Development, 57 North Liberty Street, Cumberland, Maryland 21502 at (301) 759-6437 or TDD # 1-800-735-2258 or e-
mail to lee.borror@cumberlandmd.gov; at least 3 days before September 19, 2023. All comments received will be 
included in the report for review by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.   
 
Infrastructure/Facilities: 82% regular expenditures & 62% CARES ACT (CV) funds expenditures 
Improvements to segments of sidewalk within Jane Frazier Village, Queen City Drive, and South Street were 
completed and are ADA compliant, Two Constitution Park facilities improvement projects were completed on 
the Guard Station and pool sites. The YMCA Gilchrist, a Transitional Homeless Shelter gymnasium roof 
rehabilitation was completed benefiting 257 people attending programming at the shelter. Regular CDBG & CV 
funds completed parts of youth center rehabilitation on Centre Street downtown and the YMCA transitional 
shelter’s roof rehab.   
 
Housing & Homeless Services: 1% regular expenditures &22% CV expenditures  
One rental rehabilitation was completed and 181 transitional homeless enjoyed hot food. CV funds provided filters 
and a 24/7 crisis hotline to the Family Crisis Resource Center for victims of intimate partner violence which 
sheltered 57 households for 974 bed nights and provided documented services to 581 city residents.  
CARES ACT funds provided homeless prevention to 2 households. 
 
Public Services: 5 % regular expenditures and 16% CV expenditures (not capped by HUD) 
Health-87 people received short term prescriptions, 73 persons received long term prescriptions, 17 people in 
need received emergency dental services.  30 children received services for child abuse/neglect while Jane’s 
Place, Inc. also provided education and outreach events to targeted populations in Cumberland. Family Crisis 
Resource Center, Inc. provided free or reduced intensive violence intervention education to 25 people.  CV 
funds provided broadband accessibility to 83 households connecting to the internet. 
 
ADV.  On or before September 1, 2023 

mailto:lee.borror@cumberlandmd.gov


File Attachments for Item:

1. Charter Amendment Resolution No. 152 (2nd and 3rd readings) - to repeal and re-enact with 

Amendments Section 13 of the Charter of the City of Cumberland pertaining to the compensation of the 

Mayor and City Council



CHARTER AMENDMENT RESOLUTION NO. 152 

 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND, ADOPTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY 

CONTAINED IN ARTICLE 11-E OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF 

MARYLAND AND SECTION 4-304 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ARTICLE OF 

THE ANNOTATED CODE OF MARYLAND ENTITLED “A RESOLUTION TO 

REPEAL AND RE-ENACT WITH AMENDMENTS SECTION 13 OF THE CHARTER 

OF THE CITY PERTAINING TO THE COMPENSATION OF THE MAYOR AND 

CITY COUNCIL.”   

 WHEREAS, Section 13 of the City Charter pertains to compensation for the Mayor 

and City Council; 

 WHEREAS, the said section of the City Charter has not been altered since the 

passage of Charter Resolution No. 73, passed August 9, 1978; 

 WHEREAS, the current rate of compensation for the Mayor is $7,200.00 per year 

and it is $4,800 for members of the City Council; 

 WHEREAS, this rate of compensation has not been changed since July 1, 1981, 

roughly forty-two years ago; and 

 WHEREAS, an increase in the aforesaid compensation is long overdue. 

 NOW, THEREFORE: 

 SECTION 1:  BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND, that Section 13 of the City Charter is repealed and re-

enacted to read as follows: 

Section 13. Compensation of mayor and councilmen. 

Effective July 1, 2023, the Mayor shall be compensated at the rate of 

Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00) for each fiscal year, and City 

Councilpersons shall be compensated at the rate of Ten Thousand Dollars 

($10,000.00) for each fiscal year. Said compensation shall be adjusted for 

each cost-of-living adjustment and other changes in annual compensation 

given to civil service employees generally, without regard to whether the 

changes are temporary or permanent.        

 



 2 

 SECTION 2:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a public hearing on this 

Charter Amendment Resolution shall be held on the ____ day of ________, 2023.   Notice 

of the public hearing identified hereinbefore was provided by publication in the 

Cumberland Times-News on the ___ day of ________, 2023, the said date being at least 

twenty-one (21) days prior to the date of the hearing, and by posting on the North Centre 

Street entrance of City Hall, Cumberland, Maryland, the date of the public hearing.  The 

City Clerk is hereby specifically directed to carry out the provisions of this Section. 

 SECTION 3: AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the date of the passage of 

this Resolution is _____________, 2023, and the amendment of the Charter of the City of 

Cumberland hereby enacted shall become effective on the ____ day of _______, 2023 

unless a proper petition for a referendum hereon shall be filed on or before the 40th day 

after the date of the passage of this Resolution, as provided by Section 4-304 of the Local 

Government Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland.  A complete and exact copy of 

this Resolution shall be continuously posted on the North Centre Street entrance of City 

Hall, Cumberland, Maryland, until _______________, 2023, and the title of this 

Resolution and a fair summary of its terms shall be published in the Cumberland Times-

News no less than four times, at weekly intervals, before the aforesaid date. 

 SECTION 4:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is hereby 

specifically directed to carry out the provisions of Section 3 hereof and to cause to be 

affixed to this Resolution a certificate of the publication in the Cumberland Times-News, 

and the Mayor, if there is no petition for referendum, shall declare the Charter Amendment 

made to be effective on the 50th day after this Resolution is effective date herein provided 

for, which is ______________, 2023, by affixing his signature hereto in the space provided 

below the effective date hereof. 

 SECTION 5:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if a proper petition for 

referendum on the Charter Amendment herein proposed is filed, the Mayor and other 

proper officials of the City of Cumberland shall comply with applicable law, including, but 

not limited to, Subtitle 3 of Title 4 of the aforesaid Local Government Article. 

 SECTION 6:  AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, no later than ten (10) days 

after the Charter Amendment effected by this Resolution becomes effective, either as 

herein provided or following a referendum, the City Clerk shall mail a copy of this 



 3 

Resolution to the Department of Legislative Services of Maryland, said mailing to include 

a complete certified copy of the text of this Resolution, the date of the referendum, if any 

is held, a certificate showing the number of Councilpersons voting for and against it, and a 

report on the votes cast for or against the amendments hereby enacted at any referendum 

hereon, and the effective date of the Charter Amendment. 

 

 THIS RESOLUTION PASSED THIS ____ DAY OF _____________, 2023.   

 

      ___________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morris, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Allison Layton, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 The Charter Amendment enacted by the aforegoing Resolution became effective 

this ____ day of ____________, 2023. 

 

      ___________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morris, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Allison Layton, City Clerk 

    

 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY, that the aforegoing Resolution, amending the Charter of 

the City of Cumberland, Maryland, was passed the ____ day of ______________, 2023, 

with ____ votes in affirmation and ____ votes in the negative. 

 

      ____________________________ 

      Allison Layton, City Clerk 



 4 

  

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that: 

1. Notice of the public hearing identified hereinbefore was provided by 

publication in the Cumberland Times-News on the ___ day of ________, 

2023, the said date being at least twenty-one (21) days prior to the date of the 

hearing, and by posting on the North Centre Street entrance of City Hall, 

Cumberland, Maryland, the date of the public hearing.  A true and correct 

copy of the published notice is attached hereto. The said hearing was held on 

the _____ day of ___________, 2023. 

2. The title of this Resolution was published in the Cumberland Times-News on  

   ___________________________, 

   ___________________________, 

   ___________________________ and 

   ___________________________, 

 as evidenced by the true and correct copy of the Cumberland Times-News 

certificate of publication attached hereto, and that it was posted on the North 

Centre Street entrance of City Hall, Cumberland, Maryland together with a 

copy of this Resolution commencing on the day the title of this Resolution 

was first published in the Cumberland Times-News on the ____ day of 

_____________, 2023 and continuing through the date this Resolution 

became effective. 

3. The aforegoing is a true and exact copy of the Charter Amendment Resolution 

No. _____ passed by the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, 

in Regular Session on the ____ day of _____________, 2023. 

4. A petition for a referendum was not filed within the forty-nine (49) days 

following the date of the passage of the foregoing Resolution and, therefore, it 

became effective on the ____ day of _____________, 2023.  

 

 

      ____________________________ 

      Allison Layton, City Clerk 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,320 - rescinding Order 27,308 dated September 5, 2023 and authorizing the abatement of 

2023-20234 taxes in the amount of $12,087.84 for City-owned property at 600 Bishop Walsh Road (Tax 

ID #06-050301)



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,320                        DATE:     September 19, 2023 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, Order No. 27,308 approved on September 5, 2023 be and is hereby rescinded 

due to a misstated tax year and; 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED THAT, the City Comptroller be and is hereby 

authorized to abate 2023-2024 taxes in the amount of $12,087.84 for the City-owned cellular 

tower location at 600 Bishop Walsh Road (Tax ID#06-050301). 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 





File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,321 - accepting certain bids received for the "2023 GovDeals Sale 3 of Surplus Vehicles and 

Equipment" and rejecting all other bids



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,321                   DATE:   September 19, 2023___ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the following bids received for the "2023 Sale 3 of Surplus Vehicles and 

Equipment on GovDeals " be and are hereby accepted, and all other bids received be and 

are hereby rejected: 

 Unit # Year Make Bidder Bid Amount 

1. 603 Sewer 
 

2007 Chevrolet Silverado Classic 

2500HD 4x4 
Carter, David $5,550.00 

2. Crack Sealer 
 

Cimline Crack Sealer (Asphalt) 

Diesel 
Downer, Ryan $15,300.00 

3. 604 Sewer  2012 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 4x4 Harper, Howard $8,200.00 

4. 108 
Engineering  

2007 Chevrolet Trail Blazer LS Squier, Leigh $4,000.00 

5. 308 Water 
Dis.  

2013 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD Elbardaweel, Rafat $10,001.00 

6. 507 P&R 
 

2007 Chevrolet Silverado Classic 

3500 Diesel 
Morrow, John $13,421.00 

7. 503 P&R 
 

2008 Chevrolet Silverado 3500HD 

(Parts Only) 
Gossard, Joseph $3,410.00 

 

8. 
104 Water 

Dis.  

2008 Chevrolet Colorado Bennett, Robert 
 

$4,250.00 

 

9. 
101 Com. 

Dev.  

2002 Dodge Durango SXT Squier, Leigh $2,025.00 

   TOTAL  $66.157.00 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 







File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,322 - declaring office furniture (six chairs) as surplus property and authorizing it to be sold, 

donated or disposed of and accepting the request from the Town of Ridgeley, WV to donate the chairs



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  __27,322___                       DATE:   September 19, 2023 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is the record owner of 

certain office chairs that have been determined to be of no further value to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to dispose of said office chairs; 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, THAT, the surplus office chairs are hereby declared to be surplus 

property and are authorized for donation to the Town of Ridgeley, WV. 

 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 





File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,323- declaring vehicles and equipment to be surplus and authorizing them for sale, trade in or 

scrap



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  __27,323___                    DATE:   _September 19, 2023_ 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is the record owner of 

certain vehicles and equipment that have been determined to be of no further value to the 

City; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to dispose of said vehicles and 

equipment; 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, THAT, the following vehicles and equipment are hereby declared to be 

surplus property and authorized for sale, trade in or scrap: 

Unit Department Vehicle VIN / Serial No. 

MED-

342 

Fire 2014 Ford F-450 Ambulance 1FDUF4HT5EEB88073 

 Central 

Services 

2007 Chevrolet 2500 HD 4X4 Pickup 1GCHK24KX7E572470 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,324 - authorizing the emergency lighting, flood lighting, DOT lighting and lighting housing of 

a surplus 2014 Ford F450 Ambulance to be donated to Barton Hose Company



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,324                      DATE:  September 19, 2023 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is the record owner of a 

certain vehicle that has been determined to be of no further value to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to donate parts of said vehicle; 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, THAT, the 2014 Ford F450 Ambulance is hereby declared to be surplus 

property and accepting the request from Barton Hose Company to donate the emergency 

lighting, flood lighting, DOT lighting and lighting housing of the ambulance. 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 







File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,325 – authorizing an extension through October 31, 2023 on the forgivable loan originally 

approved by Order No. 27,069 dated August 16, 2022, due to construction delays



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,325                        DATE:     September 19, 2023 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, an extension to the forgivable loan originally approved by Order No. 27,069 

on August 16, 2022, for the renovation project at 432 N. Centre Street, be and is hereby 

approved and;  

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED THAT, the extension to said loan, requested due to 

delays with construction and unforeseen needs for additional improvements to the property 

be and is hereby valid through October 31, 2023. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 





File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,326 - authorizing the sole source purchase of one (1) Pierce Saber Fire Engine, Custom Stock 

Pumper Job #41230 from Atlantic Emergency Solutions in the amount not to exceed $898,000, including 

equipment and mounting of equipment



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,326                           DATE:    September 19, 2023 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Sole Source purchase of one (1) Pierce Saber Fire Engine, Custom Stock 

Pumper Job #41230 from Atlantic Emergency Solutions, 12351 Randolph Ridge Lane, 

Manassas, Virginia 20109, in the not-to-exceed amount of Eight Hundred Ninety-Eight 

Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($898,000), be and is hereby approved; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED THAT, this special pricing is in accordance with 

City Code Section 2-171(d), which pertains to the purchase of equipment or services only 

available through a sole source or a source that has significant familiarity with the city 

resource for which the purchase is sought,  

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budget: 

Fiscal Year Budget 2025 

  



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date:   September 19, 2023  

Key Staff Contact:  Fire Chief Shannon Adams 

   City Administrator Jeff Silka 

 

Item Title:   

Purchase One (1) Pierce Saber Fire Engine 

 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc. for Council: 

Recommend to sole source purchase one (1) Pierce Saber Fire Engine, Custom Stock Pumper Job #41230 
from Atlantic Emergency Solutions, 12351 Randolph Ridge Lane, Manassas, Virginia  20109, in the 
amount not to exceed Eight Hundred Ninety-Eight Thousand Dollars and No Cents, $898,000.00 that 
includes equipment and mounting of equipment. 

 

Due to the emergent need to replace fire apparatus, on the September 5, 2023 Work Session, the Mayor 
and City Council authorized the City Administrator and Fire Chief to enter into a purchase agreement as 
soon as possible. 

 

Pierce Manufacturing is the only company that is able to meet our critical timeframe to purchase a stock 
engine pumper. 

 

The new fire engine will be delivered in May 2025. 

 

 

Amount of Award: 

Budget number:  FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 2025 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: 













File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,327 - accepting the bid from Harbel, Inc., for the repairs to Bridge A-C-01 McMullen Bridge 

(City Project 18-16-BR) in the not-to-exceed amount of $500,577.92



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,327                           DATE:    September 19, 2023 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the bid from Harbel, Inc., 11521 Milnor Avenue/PO BOX 358, Cumberland 

MD 21502, for the repairs to Bridge A-C-01 McMullen Bridge (City Project 18-16-BR) in 

the not-to-exceed amount of Five Hundred Thousand Five Hundred Seventy Seven 

Dollars and Ninety Two Cents ($500,577.92), be and is hereby approved. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budget: 

115.99XE.63000 

  



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: 9/19/2023 

Key Staff Contact: Matt Idleman, P.E. 

 

Item Title: 

Award Repairs to Bridge A-C-01 McMullen Bridge, City Project # 18-16-BR 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

Award Repairs to Bridge A-C-01 McMullen Bridge Contract to low responsive bidder, Harbel, Inc., in the 
lump sum cost of $500,577.92. 

This project involves various repairs on McMullen Bridge including replacement of multiple sections of 
pedestrian sidewalk, and associated drainage components (trench drain, cleanouts), replacement of 
roadway joint compression seals and angles, repair of delaminated and loose concrete and spalls at 
substructure and superstructure components (abutment, backwalls, wingwalls and girders), localized 
parapet replacement, and associated traffic control measures. 

This project was advertised for bid on 7/26/23. Bids closed on 8/23/23, with one qualified bid being 
received. The low bidder was Harbel Inc., with an acceptable bid of $500,577.92. 

The project is budgeted for this fiscal year, and utilizes City Funds & State Aid Funds  

 

Amount of Award: $500,577.92 

Budget number: 115.99XE.63000 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: City Funds & State Aid Funds 




























	Top
	.	Report - Admin. Services Monthly Report - August 2023
	SKM_C36823091513060

	.	Report - Maint. Div. Monthly Report  - August 2023
	Maint. Div. Report - Aug. 2023_001

	.	Report - Fire Dept. Monthly Report - August 2023
	Fire Dept. Report for August

	.	Report - Police Dept. Report - August 2023
	August 2023

	.	Report - Utilities Div. F/W/S Monthly Reports Jul. & Aug. 2023
	Utilities Division WATER-SEWER-FLOOD Monthly Reports July & August 2023

	1.	Presentation of the Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the 2022 FY by Lee Borror, Senior Community Development Specialist.
	Public Notice CAPER 2022 (1)

	1.	CAR 152 - Mayor and City Council Compensation
	CAR 152 Sec 13 - Compensation of mayor and councilpersons

	.	Order 27,319 - Special Taxing District exemptions
	.	Order 27,320 - abatement of taxes 600 BW Road
	2023.9.19 Order 27320 Tax Abatement 600 Bishop Walsh Road Cell Tower
	SKM_C36823091410540

	.	Order 27,321 - Accepting Bds from GovDeals Sale 3
	2023.09.19 Order 27321 Award Surplus Vehicles and Equip. GovDeals Sale 3
	GovDeals Sale 3 Aug 2023

	.	Order 27,322 - Surplus Office Furniture to be Donated
	2023.09.19 Order 27322 Surplus Office Chairs
	SKM_C36823091410500

	.	Order 27,323 - declaring Ford F450 Ambulance Surplus and donating
	2023.09.19 Order 27323 Surplus Vehicle and Donation of Equipment

	.	Order 27,324 Surplus Ambulance Parts to be Donated
	2023.09.19 Order  27,324 Surplus Vehicle-Ambulance parts donation
	Ambulance parts donation backup

	.	Order 27,325 - extension to forgivable loan Dearcangelis
	2023.09.19 Order  27,325 Extension of Forgivable Loan Dearcangelis
	SKM_C36823091411400

	.	Order 27,326 - Purchase One (1) Pierce Saber Fire Engine
	2023.09.19 Order  27,326 Pierce Saber Fire Engine 898,000
	Council Agenda Summary September 19, 2023 for Fire Engine
	SKM_C25823091409281

	.	Order 27,327 - Award Repairs to Bridge A-C-01 McMullen Bridge, City Project # 18-16-BR
	2023.09.19 Order  27,327 McMullen Bridge Repairs A-C-01 Harbel Inc.
	Agenda Worksheet
	Harbel, Inc.

	Bottom



